
 

1 

 

 

 
 

Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 
DATE:  January 30, 2024 

 

TO:     Board of Zoning and Adjustments:   Delayne Dean, 

Chair, Chester Ayers, George Allen, Michael Maurer, Mark 

McCurry, and Jeremy Goforth 

 

       BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

January 30, 2024 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (7th Floor) 



 

2 

 

Table of Contents 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 2023 ................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA JANUARY 2024 ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

CASE NO. 1 211 WEST MOULTON ST .................................................................................................................... 10 

APPLICATION NO. 2 ..................................................................................................................................................... 11 
LETTER ....................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
LETTER ....................................................................................................................................................................... 13 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
PARKING LAYOUT ......................................................................................................................................................... 16 
LIFE SAFETY ................................................................................................................................................................ 17 
TOPO ........................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

CASE NO. 2 514 TAMMY ST. SW ........................................................................................................................... 19 

HOME OCCUPATION APPLICATION .................................................................................................................................. 20 
HOME OCCUPATION QUESTIONNAIRE .............................................................................................................................. 21 

CASE NO. 3 611 MARTHA ST. SW ......................................................................................................................... 22 

HOME OCCUPATION APPLICATION .................................................................................................................................. 23 
HOME OCCUPATION QUESTIONNAIRE .............................................................................................................................. 24 

CASE NO. 4 703 FINK ST. N W ............................................................................................................................... 25 

SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 26 
PLAT ......................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
PICTURE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

CASE NO. 5 609 BANK ST. NW .............................................................................................................................. 29 

SIGN APPLICATION ....................................................................................................................................................... 30 
PICTURE 1 .................................................................................................................................................................. 31 
PICTURE 2 .................................................................................................................................................................. 32 
PICTURE 3 .................................................................................................................................................................. 33 
PICTURE 4 .................................................................................................................................................................. 34 

CASE NO. 6 4303 JADE CIR. SE .............................................................................................................................. 35 

SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 36 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 37 
PICTURE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 38 
PICTURE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

Minutes November 2023 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Delayne Dean, Mr. Brad Townson, Mr. Chester Ayers, 

         

SUPERNUMERARIES:       Mr. Mike Maurer, Mr. Mark McCurry 

 

COPIED TO:       Mr. George Allen       

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Asst. City Attorney 

        Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department 

        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

             Mr. Tom Polk, Development Services Manager and Recorder 

         

 

Chair, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. in the council chambers on the first 

floor at City Hall.   

 

Chair asked that role be called. Present as noted above. 

 

Chair asked if October minutes required any corrections. There were no corrections made. Mr. 

Brad Townson motioned to approve the minutes Mr. Mark McCurry seconded the motion. On a 

voice vote, all yes, the motion carried. The minutes from the October 2023 meeting were 

approved. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

Application and appeal of Stephen Graham for a 2000 square foot area variance from Section 25-

10.11 (2) (a) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to build a multifamily dwelling unit located at 504 

Somerville Rd. Property is located in a R-4 Multifamily Residential District. 

 

Steve Graham presented his case to the Board. Mr. Graham stated his address as 1210 College 

Street SE. Mr. Graham stated he has purchased two lots at the corner of Sherman St and 

Somerville Rd. SE. Both lots are zoned for multi-family units and both lots have 7000 square 

feet. Mr. Graham stated he wants to use the lots for their intended purpose in the beginning. The 

lot at the corner of Sherman and Somerville Road once had a triplex that burnt and was 

bulldozed. 

 

Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. Mr. Maurer asked where the parking for the 

residents would be provided. Mr. Graham stated he discuss that with the Building and Planning 

Departments. Chair asked for comments from the public. None. Chair asked for comment from 

the Building Department. Mr. Townson asked how case #1 and #2 were being handled. Mr. Bob 

Sims replied individually, as separate cases. Chair asked for comments from the Planning 

Department. None. Chair called for Public comments. None. Chair closed call for public 

testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Brad Townson made a motion to approve. Mike 

Maurer made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

 



 

4 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 

Application and appeal of Stephen Graham for a 2000 square foot area variance from Section 25-

10.11 (2) (a) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to build a multifamily dwelling unit located at 

1203 Sherman St. SE. Property is located in a R-4 Multifamily Residential District. 

 

Steve Graham presented his case to the Board. Mr. Graham stated his address as 1210 College 

Street SE. 

 

Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. 

None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked for 

comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Brad Townson made a motion to approve. Mark McCurry made a 

second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

Application and appeal of an administration decision for Mr. Cortez Elliott as allowed in Section 

25-11 of the Zoning Ordinance in order to have a daycare located at 2618 Briar Av. SW. 

Property is located in a B-6 Business Office District. 

 

Cortez Elliott presented this case to the Board. Mr. Elliott stated his address as 2819 Montrose 

Drive SW. Mr. Elliott stated he was denied a Certificate of Occupancy. Mr. Elliott stated he 

would provide a fence for the front and side yards. Mr. Elliott stated he cannot find a reason why 

a daycare would not be allowed. Mr. Elliott stated the B-6 zone “sticks-out” to include this 

property. Mr. Elliott stated he searched the sex-offender register and found none within 2000 feet 

of the property. 

 

Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. 

None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked for 

comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Chester Ayers made a motion to vote on the variance. Mark 

McCurry made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

Application and appeal of Interplan, LLC for a 29 parking space variance from Section 25-16 of 

the Zoning Ordinance and a 9 foot setback variance from 25-12 and 25.21.1 (2) in order to install 

a canopy located at 1809 Beltline Road. Property is located B-4 Regional Shopping Business 

District. 

 

Ms. Kendra Lewis, with Interplan LLC, presented this case before the Board. Ms. Lewis stated 

her address as 220 East Central Parkway Suite 4000, Altamonte Springs, FL. Ms. Lewis stated 

Interplan is proposing to redevelop this Chic-Fil-A, the scope of work is a building addition to 

the rear at the building to expend the kitchen. Add a dual fulfillment line at the drive-through in 

order to increase queuing capacity onsite. This will help reduce offsite stacking, in hopes to 

improve traffic flow. As a result of this scope of work, Interplan is seeking a parking space 



 

5 

 

reduction and a variance to reduce the front yard setback. The scope of work would include a 

canopy over the new pick-up area. 

 

Chair DeLayne Dean stated Ms. Kendra Lewis is not on the application. Ms. Lewis stated her 

name is included in the (other) paperwork. Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. 

Mike Maurer asked if the restaurant would be closed while renovations were underway. Ms. 

Lewis stated that the restaurant would be closed during renovations. Chair asked for Public 

comments. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling.  Mike Maurer made a motion. Mark McCurry made the second. 

Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

Application and appeal of an administration decision of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-76 (p) in 

order to install a directional sign for Marriott Courtyard located at the corner of Old Moulton Rd 

and Courtyard Circle, this property is located at 1209 Courtyard Circle in a B-2 General Business 

District. 

 

Mr. Parks Harris, with Trav-Ad Signs, presented this case before the Board. Mr. Harris stated his 

address as 214 Dorchester Drive SE.  

 

Mr. Harris stated Marriott is upgrading their signage and would like to add a directional sign to 

direct traffic. This sign would be consistent will other Marriott signage. 

 

 Mr. Harris stated the existing directional sign is damaged. 

 

 Ms. DeLayne Dean asked if the original sign had a variance.  

 

Mr. Bob Sims stated the current sign is not located at 1209 Courtyard Circle, it’s at the corner of 

Old Moulton and Courtyard Circle. It’s not on Marriott’s property.  

 

Mr. Harris stated hewas out-of-pocket. Mr. Harris thought it was on Marriott’s property.”  

 

Mr. Sims stated that the existing directional sign is not on Marriott property and that the property 

had been annexed into the City of Decatur after the hotel was constructed.  

 

Mr. Townson asked where the proposed sign will be located.  

 

Mr. Maurer asked how they could install a sign on someone else’s property.  

 

Ms. Dean asked Legal if the application would have to come from the owner of the property.  

 

Legal stated this would be a billboard, a non-conforming use. The owner of the property could 

petition the Board. 

 Ms. Dean stated the Board could not grant a variance to Marriott for a property the applicant 

does not own. Mr. Harris stated this was news to him that the sign was not on their property. Ms. 



 

6 

 

Dean asked Mr. Harris if he would like the Board to deny or table his application. Mr. Harris 

stated he was not aware the existing sign had been removed. There was discussion on where the 

existing sign is located and property lines nearby using GIS using meeting monitors. Chair asked 

if there were questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. None. Chair 

asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked for comments from the 

Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its 

ruling. Brad Townson made a motion to vote. Mark McCurry made second motion. All voted no. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-77 (a) (3) in order to install a second 

attached sign on the Westmeade Baptist Church Building located at 1626 Runnymeade Avenue 

SW. The property is located in an R-4 Multifamily Residential Zoning District. 

 

Ken Comer, with Trav-Ad-Signs, presented this case before the Board. Mr. Comer stated he is 

presenting this case and case 7 for Westmeade Baptist Church. Mr. Comer introduced Senior 

Pastor Mr. Calpin and Church representative Ben Tinley. Mr. Comer covered the scope of work 

indicated in the application and its attachments. Ms. Dean asked Mr. Comer if page 57 of the 

agenda package includes what is being asked in the application. Mr. Comer confirmed yes. Chair 

asked if there were questions from the Board. Mr. Brad Townson asked if this case was asking a 

variance to allow two on-premises signs versus one. Mr. Bob Sims confirmed the application is 

asking for a second sign. Mr. Comer stated both signs are 14.5 square feet total. Chair asked if 

there were any more questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. None. 

Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked for comments from 

the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board 

for its ruling. Mr. Mark McCurry made first motion to vote. Mr. Mike Maurer made second. All 

yes votes. 

 

CASE NO. 7 

Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-73 (2) for an area variance for on 

premises directional signs as follows located at Westmeade Baptist Church Building located at 

1626 Runnymeade Avenue. The property is located in an R-4 Multifamily Residential Zoning 

District. 

• 26 square foot area variance to install 1 30 square foot directional sign. 

• 8 square foot area variance to install 6 directional signs. 

The property is located in an R-4 Multifamily Residential Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims stated this property is located in an M-1-A zoning district Ken Comer, with Trav-

Ad-Signs, presented this case before the Board. Mr. Comer covered the scope of work indicated 

in the application and its attachments. Chair asked if there were questions from the Board. Ms. 

DeLayne Dean asked if all signs, with the exception of the sign that is near the volleyball court, 

are they close to buildings, not in the parking lot, not in drive aisles. Mr. Comer stated the sign to 

the right of the main entrance will be mounted near the portico, about 15 feet from portico. Mr. 

Comer stated there was one sign in a parking lot island. Chair asked for Public comments. None. 

Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. Mr. Bob Sims clarified the term 

directional signs as found in the zoning ordinance. Chair asked for comments from the Planning 



 

7 

 

Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. 

Mr. Mark McCurry made first motion to vote. Mr. Mike Maurer made second. All yes votes. 

 

CASE NO. 8 

Application and appeal Two Capital Partners (C/O Zach Moore) for a 28 foot front yard setback 

variance from Section 25-12 and 25.21.1 of the Zoning Ordinance in order to allow: 

• The proposed building align with the Krispy Kreme building. 

• Allow stacking of cars on lot 2 allowing access to the property from the rear of the property. 

The property is located at 1646 Beltline Road SW in a M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning 

District. 

 

Zack Moore, with Two Capital Partners, presented this case to the Board. Mr. Moore stated his 

address as 1646 Beltline Road SW. Mr. Moore described the case as indicated on the application. 

Mr. Moore stated the reason for this variance request is to reduce car stacking for the proposed 

oil change business. At this business, clients do not get out of their cars to get the oil changed. 

The lot size and building layout does not allow the needed stacking without this variance. Chair 

asked if there were questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for Public comments. None. 

Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked for comments from 

the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board 

for its ruling. Brad Townson made a motion to approve. Mark McCurry made a second. Chair 

called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 

 

_________________________   

DeLayne Dean, Chair  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 

AGENDA January 2024  

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting on the 7TH 

FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee Street NE, on Tuesday, January 30th, 2024 at 4:00 p.m., and 

broadcast live on City of Decatur You Tube Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof 

DecaturAl for the purpose of hearing the following applications and appeals, at which time all 

interested parties are requested to be present and will be given an opportunity to be heard. 

Questions may be submitted via email at bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Calvin Washington a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-11 and 25-16 (2) (b) of the Zoning Ordinance in 

order to provide 88 spaces of off street/off premise parking for an event center located at 211 

West Moulton Street SW. Property for the event center is zoned B-1 Business District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Kanavis Lee a home occupation in 

order to operate a home office for a mobile bar located at 514 Tammy Street SW. The property 

for the home occupation is zoned R-2 Residential Single Family District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Javier E Romero a home 

occupation in order to operate a general printing business located at 611 Martha Street SW. The 

property for the home occupation is zoned R-1 Residential Single Family District.  

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of Posey and Cameron Horton III for a fourteen foot (14’) front yard 

setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (c) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a 

new detached single family dwelling located at 703 Fink Street NW. The property for the set-

back variance is zoned R-3 Residential Single Family District. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Responsible Partners, LLC for a sign variance from Section 25-77 (c) 

(1) in order to replace an existing painted sign located at 609 Bank Street NW. The property for 

the sign variance is zoned B-5 Central Business District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

9 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of Frank Pate for a seven foot (7’) rear yard variance from Section 25-

10.9 (2) (d) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a rear covered patio located at 4303 

Jade Circle SE. The property for the set-back variance is zoned R-2 Residential Single Family 

District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 1 211 WEST MOULTON ST 



 

11 

 

 
 

Application No. 2  



 

12 

 

 
 

 

 

Letter 



 

13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Letter 



 

14 

 

 
 

 

 

Survey 



 

15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Survey 



 

16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parking Layout 



 

17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Life Safety 



 

18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Topo 



 

19 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 514 TAMMY ST. SW 



 

20 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Home Occupation Application 



 

21 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Home Occupation Questionnaire 



 

22 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 611 MARTHA ST. SW 



 

23 

 

 
 

 

 

Home Occupation Application 



 

24 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Home Occupation Questionnaire 



 

25 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 703 FINK ST. N W 



 

26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 



 

27 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Plat 



 

28 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 



 

29 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 5 609 BANK ST. NW 



 

30 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Sign Application 



 

31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 1 



 

32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 2 



 

33 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 3 



 

34 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Picture 4 



 

35 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 6 4303 JADE CIR. SE 



 

36 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Survey 



 

37 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 



 

38 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Picture 



 

39 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Picture 


